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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
1 455,165,800 520,521,500
8 1,280,441 11,128,116
9 46,943,682 34,217,073

503,389,923 565,866,689
10 (23,242,245) (25,242,949)

480,147,678 540,623,740
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15 15,827,568 (221,952,310)
6 8,019,299 15,737,746

23,846,867 (206,214,564)

7 (48,933,053) (59,099, 157)
(25,086, 186) (265,313,721)

(147,241) (185,489)

(25,233,427) (265,499,210)

4 (1,191,635) (2,411,352)
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540,623,740 1,096,961,907

2

2 (34,051,000) (288,427,605)
(34,051,000) (288,427,605)
(26,425,062) (267,910,562)

480,147,678 540,623,740

781265



EDINETOOOO
OOo0oDOoO0oDoooDo0oDo0obDoooooo0b0o0o0ooo(esL7o1)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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9,847,675 (169,711)
(2,000,704) 2,828,678
73,202,671 534,984,523

(34,051,000) (288,427,605)
(34,051,000) (288,427,605)
12,726,609 (21,353, 644)
34,217,073 55,570,717
46,943,682 34,217,073

8,833,529 16,002,265

(1,191,635) (2,411,352)

(147,241) (185, 489)
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
80,324,991 219,798,589
(142,309,546) (63,596, 980)
7
(61,984,548) 156,201,609
125,345,567 11,008,915
(47,533,451) (389,162,834)
77,812,116 (378,153,919)

15,827,568 (221,952,310)
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
7,756,453 15,737,746
262,541
305
8,019,299 15,737,746
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

(9,258,324)
(5,194,848)
(2,062, 350)
(549,857)
(104,412)
(4,824,074)
(3,053,017)
(22,939,828)
(539, 646)
(406,697)

(9,559,463)
(9,571,916)
(3,799,911)
(617,276)
432,495

(5,920,925)
(1,738,266)
(27,906,089)

(417,806)

(48,933,053)

(59,099,157)

2019 12 31 11,500 2018 12 31 11,500
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
439,716 1,516,792
5,743,976
840,725 3,867,348

1,280,441

11,128,116
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46,943,682 34,217,073
2019 12 31
2018 12 31
10
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(23,242,245) (19,398,128)
(5.,844,821)
(23,242,245) (25,242,949)
11
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
1,432,577,367 589,080,188
1,513,760,628 899,453,434
12
9,258,324 2018 12 31 9,559,463
2,538,397 2018 12 31 8,048,407
860,810 2018 12 31 777,706
411,827 2018 12 31
5,194,848 2018 12 31 9,571,916
388,841 2018 12 31 991,491
2,612,207 2018 12 31
4,417,187 193,532 2018 12
31 493,246
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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2019 12 31

2018 12 31 1.68
0.96 2018 12 31 3.37

6,000 4,620,000 0.96
2.57 2018 12 31 1.68
800 12,360,000 2.57
2.83 2018 12 31 4.05
5,600 13,596,800 2.83
8.94 2018 12 31 17.82
2,600 10,205,000 2.13
500 1,882,500 0.39
27,000 22,815,000 4.75
1,800 8,019,000 1.67
9.69 2018 12 31 3.93
12,200 20,984,000 4.37
2,500 4,820,000 1.00
1,700 5,227,500 1.09
4,100 9,585,800 2.00
400 5,904,000 1.23
7.13 2018 12 31 3.95
1,700 15,342,500 3.20
300 4,800,000 1.00
1,000 7,782,000 1.62
1,700 6,290,000 1.31
2018 12 31 3.85
2018 12 31 0.47
1.78 2018 12 31 3.59
4,700 8,558,700 1.78
2018 12 31 0.94
8.83 2018 12 31 9.24
5,000 12,295,000 2.56
1,100 11,495,000 2.40
900 13,504,500 2.81
2,500 5,075,000 1.06
2018 12 31 1.78
1.61 2018 12 31
1,700 7,726,500 1.61
3.09 2018 12 31
1,300 6,981,000 1.45
1,900 4,845,000 1.01
500 3,015,000 0.63
2018 12 31 0.54
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5.40 2018 12 31

5,700 9,627,300 2.01
900 3,096,000 0.64
3,400 13,209,000 2.75

2018 12 31 3.99
2018 12 31 4.24
6.36 2018 12 31 2.66

5,000 2,475,000 0.51
1,500 2,586,000 0.54
2,700 8,923,500 1.86
1,100 3,215,300 0.67
7,100 8,867,900 1.85
500 2,800,000 0.58
800 1,669,600 0.35
2018 12 31  0.63

4.01 2018 12 31  4.68

500 19,245,000 4.01
2018 12 31 2.73
11.13 2018 12 31  2.25
5,400 10,098,000 2.10
1,900 13,733,200 2.86
900 7,383,600 1.54
1,100 10,197,000 2.12
200 1,894,000 0.40
1,500 10,150,500 2.11
1.90 2018 12 31 0.76
4,700 9,108,600 1.90
13.44 2018 12 31  4.04

300 19,500,000 4.06
1,500 7,860,000 1.64
14,600 18,761,000 3.91
6,300 16,323,300 3.40
300 2,085,000 0.43

2018 12 31 5.30
1.17 2018 12 31
11,700 5,604,300 1.17
2018 12 31 2.03
2018 12 31 1.27
3.96 2018 12 31 4.81

400 2,644,000 0.55

3,200 9,491,200 1.98

2,700 6,887,700 1.43
412,139,150 455,165,800 94.80
2018 12 31 2.06 1,280,441 0.27
2018 12 31 6.33 46,943,682 9.78

97/265



EDINETOOOO
OOo0oDOoO0oDoooDo0oDo0obDoooooo0b0o0o0ooo(esL7o1)
oopoodooodooodooodd

503,389,923 104.85
2018 12 31 4.67 (23,242,245) (4.85)
480,147,678 100.00

98/265



EDINETOOOO
OOo0oDOoO0oDoooDo0oDo0obDoooooo0b0o0o0ooo(esL7o1)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31 2018 12 31 2017 12 31
480,147,678 540,623,740 1,096,961,907
72,000 77,000 107,000

6,669 7,021 10,252
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YUK MI1ZUHO JAPAN DYNAMIC GROWTH FUND
(a Sub-Fund of Yuki Mizuho Umbrel la Fund)

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year

ended 31 December 2019

Statement of Financial Position

As at As at
31 December 31 December
Notes 2019 2018
JP\ JP\
Current Assets
f;22n0|al assets at fair value through profit or 1 455,165,800 520,521,500
Debtors 8 1,280,441 11,128,116
Cash and cash equivalents 9 46,943,682 34,217,073
Total Current Assets 503,389,923 565,866,689
Current Liabilities
Credltgrs - amounts falling due within one 10 (23,242,245) (25,242,949)
financial year
Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable 480,147,678 540,623,740

Participating Unitholders

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

On behal f of the Board of Directors of AIFM

Neil Clifford

Dennis Murray

21 April 2020
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YUKI MIZUHO JAPAN DYNAMIC GROWTH FUND
(a Sub-Fund of Yuki Mizuho Umbrella Fund)

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Financial Year Ended Financial Year Ended

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
JP\ JP\

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,5 15,827,568 (221,952,310)
Gross income 6 8,019,299 15,737,746
Total investment income/(loss) 23,846,867 (206,214,564)
Operating expenses 7 (48,933,053) (59,099,157)
Net loss for the financial year (25,086,186) (265,313,721)
Finance costs
Interest expense (147,241) (185,489)
Operating loss before tax (25,233,427) (265,499,210)
Less: withholding tax 4 (1,191,635) (2,411,352)
Loss for the Financial Year after Withholding Tax (26,425,062) (267,910,562)
Net Decrease in Net Assets Attributable to
Redeemable Participating Unitholders Resulting from (26,425,062) (267,910,562)

Operations

All amounts arise solely from continuing operations. There are no recognised gains or losses other than
those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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YUKI MIZUHO JAPAN DYNAMIC GROWTH FUND
(a Sub-Fund of Yuki Mizuho Umbrella Fund)
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Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year

ended 31 December 2019

Statement of Changes in Equity

Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating
Unitholders at Beginning of the Financial Year

Movement due to Subscription and Redemption of
Redeemable Participating Units

Amounts received on subscription of redeemable
participating units

Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable
participating units

Net decrease in net assets attributable to
redeemable participating unitholders resulting from
operations

Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating
Unitholders at End of the Financial Year

Notes

Financial Year Ended
31 December 2019

Financial Year Ended
31 December 2018

JP\ JP\
540,623,740 1,096,961,907
(34,051,000) (288,427 ,605)
(34,051,000) (288,427,605)
(26,425,062) (267,910,562)
480,147,678 540,623,740

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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YUKI MIZUHO JAPAN DYNAMIC GROWTH FUND
(a Sub-Fund of Yuki Mizuho Umbrella Fund)

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019

Statement of Cash Flows

Financial Year Ended
31 December 2018

Financial Year Ended
31 December 2019

JP\ JP\
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net decrease in net assets attributable to
redeemable participating unitholders resulting from (26,425,062) (267,910,562)
operations
Adjusted for:
Net decrease in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 65,355,700 532,325,556
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 9,847,675 (169,711)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (2,000,704) 2,828,678
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 73,202,671 534,984,523
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Redemption of redeemable participating units (34,051,000) (288,427,605)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (34,051,000) (288,427,605)
Mqvemeqt in Cash and Cash Equivalents during the 12,726,609 (21,353, 644)
Financial Year
Cgsh a?d Cash Equivalents at the Start of the 34,217,073 55,570,717
Financial Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the
Financial Year 46,943,682 34,217,073
Supplementary information
Dividends received 8,833,529 16,002,265
Taxation paid (1,191,635) (2,411,352)
Interest paid (147,241) (185,489)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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YUKI MIZUHO JAPAN DYNAMIC GROWTH FUND
(a Sub-Fund of Yuki Mizuho Umbrella Fund)

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies and estimation techniques applied in the preparation of the
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
financial years presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 have been prepared on a
going concern basis in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (* IFRS” ) and
its interpretations as adopted by the European Union (* EU” ), the Unit Trusts Act 1990 and the
Central Bank of Ireland"s ("Central Bank®) Alternative Investment Fund (* AIF" ) Rulebook.

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations in issue and effective 1 January 2019
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
IFRIC 23" Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” was published in June 2017 and addresses the
accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty. It specifically addresses
the following:
Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities;
How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and
How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. Based on the initial assessment, this interpretation does not have material impact on the
Sub-Fund*s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments made to IFRS 9 “ Financial Instruments” in December 2017 which are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with early adoption permitted, enable
entities to measure certain pre-payable financial assets with negative compensation at amortised
cost.
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YUKI MIZUHO JAPAN DYNAMIC GROWTH FUND
(a Sub-Fund of Yuki Mizuho Umbrella Fund)

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations in issue and effective 1 January 2019
(continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (continued)
These assets, which include some loan and debt securities, would otherwise have to be measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

To qualify for amortised cost measurement, the negative compensation must be ‘ reasonable
compensation for early termination of the contract® and the asset must be held within a * held to

collect® business model.

The adoption of the amendments to IFRS 9 did not have a significant impact on the Sub-Fund®s
financial statements.

There are no other standards, amendments to standards or interpretation that are effective for
annual period beginning on 1 January 2019 that have a material effect on the Sub-Fund®s financial
statements.

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective

The standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the
date of issuance of the Sub-Fund®s financial statements are disclosed below, except for those
standards which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors of the AIFM, will clearly not impact
the Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

The 1ASB has made amendments to IAS 1 “ Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8

“ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” which use a consistent
definition of materiality throughout International Financial Reporting Standards and the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, clarify when information is material and
incorporate some of the guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial information.
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YUKI MIZUHO JAPAN DYNAMIC GROWTH FUND
(a Sub-Fund of Yuki Mizuho Umbrella Fund)

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 (continued)

In particular, the amendments clarify:
that the reference to obscuring information addresses situations in which the effect is
similar to omitting or misstating that information, and that an entity assesses materiality
in the context of the financial statements as a whole, and

the meaning of * primary users of general purpose financial statements®™ to whom those
financial statements are directed, by defining them as ‘ existing and potential investors,
lenders and other creditors®™ that must rely on general purpose financial statements for
much of the financial information they need.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning or after 1 January 2020. Based
on the initial assessment, this new amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the
Sub-Fund*s financial statements.

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
The 1ASB has issued a revised Conceptual Framework which will be used in standard-setting
decisions with immediate effect. Key changes include:
increasing the prominence of stewardship in the objective of financial reporting
reinstating prudence as a component of neutrality
defining a reporting entity, which may be a legal entity, or a portion of an entity
revising the definitions of an asset and a liability
removing the probability threshold for recognition and adding guidance on derecognition
adding guidance on different measurement basis, and
stating that profit or loss is the primary performance indicator and that, in principle,
income and expenses in other comprehensive income should be recycled where this enhances
the relevance or faithful representation of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (continued)

No changes will be made to any of the current accounting standards. However, entities that rely
on the Framework in determining their accounting policies for transactions, events or conditions
that are not otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards will need to apply the revised
Framework from 1 January 2020. These entities will need to consider whether their accounting
policies are still appropriate under the revised Framework.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The
Sub-Fund is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that this update will have on its financial
statements.

Amendment to IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and IAS 39

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting requirements to provide certain reliefs in
connection with interest rate benchmark reform. The reliefs relate to hedge accounting and have
the effect that IBOR reform should not generally cause hedge accounting to terminate. However,
any hedge ineffectiveness should continue to be recorded in the income statement. Given the
pervasive nature of hedges involving IBOR-based contracts, the reliefs will affect companies in
all industries.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The
Sub-Fund 1is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that this update will have on its financial
statements.

There are no other standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not
yet effective that would be expected to have a significant impact on the Sub-Fund.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income and expense recognition

Dividend income is recognised as income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the dates the
securities are first quoted “ ex-dividend” to the extent that information thereon is reasonably
available to the Sub-Fund. Income is accounted for on an accruals basis. Income which suffers a
deduction of tax at source is shown gross of such withholding tax. The withholding tax is shown
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Other income recognised relates to VAT
refunds and bank interest income. All expenses are accrued to the Sub-Fund on a daily basis.

Realised gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Realised gains and losses on sales of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
calculated based on the average book cost of the investment in local currency and are included in
“ net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Unrealised gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Unrealised gains and losses on investments at fair value through profit or loss arising during
the financial year are included in “ net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and are available for distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held on call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments (if any) having a maturity of 3 months or less. Bank overdrafts, if any, are
classified as liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Classification

The Sub-Fund classifies its investment portfolio based on both the Sub-Fund®s business model for
managing those financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed and performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis. The Sub-Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to
assess the assets™ performance and to make decisions. The Sub-Fund has not taken the option to
irrevocably designate any equity securities as fair value through other comprehensive income. As
such, the Sub-Fund classifies its entire investment portfolio as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets that are not classified at fair value through profit or loss include cash and
cash equivalents and debtors. Financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or
loss include bank overdraft and creditors. These other financial assets and financial liabilities
are held at amortised cost.

The Sub-Fund®s policy requires Yuki Management & Research Co., Limited (the “ Investment

Manager” ) and the Board of Directors of Carne Global Fund Managers (lIreland) Limited (the

“ AIFM” ) to evaluate the information about these financial assets and financial liabilities on a
fair value basis together with other related financial information.

Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date, the date on which the Sub-Fund
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as
incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or the Sub-Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership and a
realised gain or loss is recognised. Realised gain and losses are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income under net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Recognition, derecognition and measurement (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within net gain/(loss) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

Fair value estimation

Equity instruments listed on a recognised stock exchange or traded on any other organised active
market are valued at fair value. The close of business price on the principal exchange or market
for such instrument, being a quoted last traded price, is taken as the best evidence of fair
value. For investments acquired or traded at a premium or discount outside or off the relevant
exchange, or on an over the counter market, these may be valued taking into account such a
premium or discount as at the date of valuation of the investment.

In the opinion of the AIFM, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the
current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances
since the time of the transaction. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
Sub-Fund establishes fair value by using a valuation technique as determined by the AIFM,
approved for such purpose by The Bank of New York SA/NV, Dublin Branch (the "Depositary'), in
consultation with the Investment Manager with a view to establishing the probable realisation
value for such assets as at the close of business.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm®s length market transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a
valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that
technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the Sub-Fund uses that technique. Estimation methods and valuation models may be
used to calculate fair value. No instruments have been valued in this manner as at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Valuation day and point

The relevant valuation point is 12:00 noon (lrish time) on the relevant dealing day. The
valuation day is each dealing day. The valuation for the purpose of these financial statements is
12:00 noon on 30 December 2019 being the last working day of the year as 31 December 2019 was a
market holiday in Japan.

Redeemable Participating Units

Redeemable participating units are redeemable at the Unitholder®s option and are classified as
equity in accordance with IAS 32. Where the Sub-Fund repurchases its redeemable participating
units, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the Sub-Fund®s Unitholders until the
redeemable participating units are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such redeemable
participating units are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Sub-Fund®s Unitholders.

Distribution Policy

The amount to be distributed to the Redeemable Participating Unitholders may include, in the
determination of the AIFM in consultation with the Investment Advisory Council, all of the income
of the Sub-Fund for the relevant financial year which is available for distribution after
deducting all operating and other revenue expenditure of the Sub-Fund and accumulated income
together with such net realised and unrealised capital gains forming part of the capital of the
Sub-Fund as the AIFM may determine subject to cash flow availability and subject to such
adjustments as may be appropriate.

Critical judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of income and expenses for the reporting period for the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Actual results could differ from estimates. As at the financial year end
date, the Directors were not aware of any existing or contingent liability of the Sub-Fund.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Critical judgements and estimates (continued)

Estimates underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which estimates are revised and in any future
accounting periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed within this note under “ fair value
estimation”

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency

The Board of Directors of the AIFM consider the Japanese Yen as the functional currency as it
most faithfully represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and
conditions. The Japanese Yen is also the currency in which the Sub-Fund measures its performance
and reports its results, as well as the currency in which it receives subscriptions from its
investors. The presentation currency is the same as the functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Sub-Fund at
the foreign currency exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

2. Number of Units in Issue and Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Unitholders

Each Unit will represent an individual beneficial interest in the Sub-Fund. The return on an
investment in the Sub-Fund will depend solely upon the investment performance of the assets in
the Sub-Fund and the increase or decrease (as the case may be) in the Net Assets Value (the

“ NAV" ) of the Units. The amount payable to a Unitholder in respect of each Unit upon
liquidation of the Sub-Fund will equal the NAV per Unit.
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2. Number of Units in Issue and Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable Participating Unitholders
(continued)

Net assets attributable to Redeemable Participating Unitholders represent a liability in the Statement
of Financial Position, carried at the redemption amount that would be payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date if the Unitholder exercised the right to redeem the Units in the Sub-Fund.

Financial Year Ended Financial Year Ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

JP\ Class JP\ Class

Opening Balance 77,000 107,000
Subscriptions - -
Redemptions (5,000) (30,000)
Closing Balance 72,000 77,000

Total redemptions during the financial year for the JP\ Class amounted to JP\(34,051,000) (31
December 2018: JP\(228,427,605)). There were no subscriptions during the financial year for the
JP\ Class (31 December 2018: JP\Nil).

3. Fees

AIFM Fee
The AIFM is entitled to receive an annual management fee plus reimbursement of expenses incurred (plus
VAT, if any) as follows:

0.09% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund on the portion of the NAV up to Euro 100 million; plus

0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund on the portion of the NAV in excess of Euro 100 million

and up to Euro 250 million; plus

0.03% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund on the portion of the NAV in excess of Euro 250 million.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the AIFM shall be entitled to a minimum annual fee of Euro 72,000 (plus

VAT, ifany). The AIFM fee is accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

The AIFM is also entitled to be paid all of its Administration Expenses (plus VAT if any) out of the assets
of the Sub-Fund.
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3. Fees (continued)

Depositary Fee

The Depositary is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund 0.02% per annum of the NAV of the
Sub-Fund (plus VAT, ifany). This fee is accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears. The Depositary
shall also receive a transaction fee of US$25 (plus VAT, if any) per security transaction (the Depositary
Fee). The fees payable to any sub-custodian (payable at normal commercial rates) shall be paid out of the
assets of the Sub-Fund.

Investment Manager Fee
The Investment Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund 0.995% per annum of the
NAV of the Sub-Fund (plus VAT, ifany). This fee is accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

The fees payable to any sub-advisor are paid by the Investment Manager out of the fees payable to it.

The Sub-Fund shall bear the cost of any value added tax applicable to any fees or other amounts payable to
or by the Investment Manager in the performance of its duties.

Administration Fee

The BNY Mel lon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity Company (the "Administrator™) is entitled to
receive an annual fee as set out below (plus VAT, if any) payable out of the assets of the Sub-Fund, which
will not exceed 0.05% of the Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund.

The Administrator is entitled to receive an annual fee based on the following rates:

0.05% of the Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund on the portion of the Net Asset Value up to
US$250 million; plus

0.04% of the Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund on the portion of the Net Asset Value in
excess of US$250 million and up to US$500 million;

0.03% of the Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund on the portion of the Net Asset Value in
excess of US$500 million and up to US$1 billion;

0.015% of the Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund on the portion of the Net Asset Value in
excess of US$1 billion.
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3. Fees (continued)

Administration Fee (continued)
The Administrator”s annual fee is subject to a minimum fee per annum in respect of the Sub-Fund of
US$60,000, which will be accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

The Administrator is entitled to receive Unit Class fees of US$2,500 per Sub-Fund per annum when the
number of Unit Classes exceeds three in the Sub-Fund.

The annual fee payable to the Administrator is attributable to all Unit Classes and represents a
deduction from the Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund and, accordingly, each Class.

The Administrator is entitled to receive reasonable out-of-pocket expenses payable out of the assets of
the Sub-Fund. The Administration Fee is deducted and paid out of the AIFM fee.

Distributor/Agent Company"s Fee

The Distributor in Japan is entitled to receive 0.395% of the NAV of the Units of the Sub-Fund distributed
in Japan. The Agent Company in Japan is entitled to receive 0.10% of the NAV of the Units of the Sub-Fund
distributed in Japan.

The Distributors shall only be entitled to such fee in respect of subscriptions for Units made through
the Distributors. Where subscriptions for Units are not made through the Distributors, the AIFM shall
pay to the Investment Manager monthly on a pro rata basis an amount to reflect any such subscriptions,

which amount shal l be payable out of the fees normally payable to the Distributors.

Performance Fee

In addition to its annual investment manager fee, the Investment Manager may receive 50% of the
performance fee from the AIFM out of the assets of the Sub-Fund calculated on a Unit-by-Unit basis so that
each Unit is charged a performance fee which equates precisely with that Unit"s performance.

The Distributor in Japan may receive 50% of the performance fee from the AIFM out of the assets of the Sub-
Fund calculated on a Unit-by-Unit basis distributed in Japan.

The performance fee will be calculated on an annual basis (each twelve month period being a “Calculation
Period”). The Depositary will verify the calculation of any performance fee paid to the Investment
Manager .
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3. Fees (continued)

Performance Fee (continued)

The performance fee in respect of each Unit will be equal to 10% of the increase in the NAV per Unit in
excess of the high water mark. The high water mark at any valuation day is the NAV per Unit in respect of
the first Calculation Period or thereafter the highest NAV per Unit on the last day of any preceding
Calculation Period, including the NAV per Unit at the end of the initial offer period.

The performance fee is payable annually in arrears as at 31 December in respect of each Calculation
Period. The performance fee will accrue daily and be taken into account in the calculation of the NAV per
Unit as at each valuation day. In the event that a Unitholder redeems Units prior to the end of a
Calculation Period, any accrued but unpaid performance fee in respect of such Units will be deducted from
the redemption proceeds and paid to the Investment Manager promptly thereafter.

The performance fee in respect of each Calculation Period will be calculated by reference to the NAV per
Unit before the deduction of any accrued performance fees.

Where performance fees are payable by the Sub-Fund, these will be based on net realised and net
unrealised gains and losses as at the end of each Calculation Period. As a result, performance fees may be
paid on unrealised gains which may subsequently never be realised.

There was no performance fee payable during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 or 31 December
2018.

4. Taxation

Under current law and practice, the Sub-Fund qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in
Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis, it is not
chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains.

However, Irish tax may arise on the happening of a ""chargeable event™. A chargeable event includes any

distribution payments to Unitholders, any encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of Units and
the holding of Units at the end of each eight year period beginning with the acquisition of such Units.
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4. Taxation (continued)

No Irish tax will arise on the Sub-Fund in respect of chargeable events in respect of:

(a) aUnitholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes, at
the time of the chargeable event, provided appropriate valid declarations in accordance with the
provisions of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, are held by the Sub-Fund or the Sub-Fund has
been authorised by the Irish Revenue to make gross payments in the absence of appropriate declarations;
and

(b) certain exempted Irish tax resident Unitholders who have provided the Sub-Fund with the necessary
signed statutory declarations.

Dividends, interest and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Sub-Fund may be
subject to taxes imposed by the country from which the investment income/gains are received and such

taxes may not be recoverable by the Sub-Fund or its Unitholders.

5. Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial Year Financial Year

Ended Ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

JP\ JP\

Realised gain on financial assets at FVTPL 80,324,991 219,798,589

Realised loss on financial assets at FVTPL (142,309,546) (63,596,980)

Realised gain on other currencies

Total realised (loss)/gain

Movement in unrealised gain on financial
assets at FVTPL

Movement in unrealised loss on financial
assets at FVTPL

Total movement in unrealised gain/(loss)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

7 -

(61,984,548)

125,345,567

(47,533,451)

156,201,609

11,008,915

(389,162,834)

77,812,116

(378,153,919)

15,827,568

(221,952,310)
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6. Gross Income

Dividend income
VAT refund

Bank interest income

7. Operating Expenses

AIFM fee

Investment Manager fee
Distributor fee
Placing Agent fee
Trustee fee

Depositary fees

Audit fees
Professional fees
Listing fees

Other expenses

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Total operating expenses

Financial Year

Financial Year

Ended Ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
JP\ JP\

7,756,453 15,737,746
262,541 -

305 -

8,019,299 15,737,746

Financial Year
Ended

31 December 2019
JP\

(9,258,324)
(5,194,848)
(2,062, 350)
(549,857)
(104,412)
(4,824,074)
(3,053,017)
(22,939,828)
(539, 646)
(406,697)

Financial Year
Ended

31 December 2018
JP\

(9,559,463)
(9,571,916)
(3,799,911)
(617,276)
432,495

(5,920,925)
(1,738,266)
(27,906,089)
(417,806)

(48,933,053)

(59,099, 157)

Statutory audit fees amounted to €11,500 for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
€11,500) . These amounts are exclusive of VAT. There were no other fees incurred in respect of taxation
advisory, other assurance or non-audit services provided by the statutory auditors during the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 or 31 December 2018.
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8. Debtors
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
JP\ JP\
Accrued dividend income 439,716 1,516,792
Receivable for investments sold - 5,743,976
Other debtors 840,725 3,867,348
1,280,441 11,128,116

9. Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
JP\ JP\

Cash and cash equivalents 46,943,682 34,217,073

All cash balances are held with The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch.

The S&P long-term credit rating of The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch was AA- at 31
December 2019. The S&P long-term credit rating of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, the
ultimate parent of BNY Mellon Trust Company (lreland) Limited, (former Depositary) was A at 31

December 2018.

10. Creditors - Amounts Falling Due Within One Financial Year

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

JP\ JP\
Accrued expenses (23,242,245) (19,398,128)
Payable for investments purchased - (5,844,821)

(23,242,245) (25,242,949)
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11. Purchases and Sales of Investments

Total purchases

Total sales

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Financial Year
Ended

31 December 2019
JP\
1,432,577,367

1,513,760,628

Financial Year
Ended

31 December 2018
JP\

589,080,188

899,453,434

12. Related Parties Transactions

Carne Global Fund Managers (lreland) Limited, as AIFM to the Sub-Fund earned fees of JP\9,258,324
(31 December 2018: JP\9,559,463), of which JP\2,538,397 (31 December 2018: JP\8,048,407) was
payable at the financial year end.

Carne Global Financial Services Limited, the parent Company of the AIFM, earned fees during the
financial year in respect of other fund governance services provided to the Sub-Fund, the fees
amounted to JP\860,810 (31 December 2018: JP\777,706) of which JP\411,827 was payable at the
financial year end (31 December 2018: JP\NIL).

Yuki Management & Research Co. Limited, as Investment Manager of the Sub-Fund, earned fees of
JP\5,194,848 (31 December 2018: JP\9,571,916) during the financial year providing this service.
At the end of the financial year, fees of JP\388,841 (31 December 2018: JP\ 991,491) were due to
Yuki Management & Research Co. Limited.

Mizuho Securities Co. Limited, a related party to the Sub-Fund, as Agent Company and Distributor
in Japan, earned fees, including Placing Agent fees, of JP\2,612,207 (31 December 2018:
JP\4,417,187) during the financial year providing this service. At the end of the financial year,
fees of JP\193,532 (31 December 2018: JP\493,246) were due to Mizuho Securities Co. Limited.

Mizuho Securities Co. Limited was the only unitholder in Yuki Mizuho Japan Dynamic Growth Fund as
at 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. Statement of Portfolio Changes

Copies of the statement of portfolio changes are available, free of charge, on request from the
Administrator.

14. Soft Commission and Directed Brokerage Service Arrangements

There were no soft commission or directed brokerage service arrangements during the financial
year, or in the prior financial year.

15. Financial Instruments

General Risk Management Process

The Board of Directors of the AIFM are ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling
risks. However, responsibility for day to day management of the Sub-Fund®s risk has been
delegated to Carne Global Fund Managers (lreland) Limited (* Carne” ) as AIFM to the Sub-Fund,
subject to its Risk Management Policy, and Yuki Management & Research Co., Limited as Investment
Manager to the Sub-Fund. Carne manage the financial risks of the Sub-Fund through the Risk
Management Policy and Procedures (the “ RMPP” ). Carne®s Risk Officer is responsible for the
implementation of the RMPP. Operational risk is monitored by the Risk Officer and the AIFM
through periodic due diligence of delegates and ongoing monitoring of reporting from delegates.

Additionally, Carne has established a Risk Committee (the “ Committee” ) which meets quarterly to
further manage risk exposure. The Committee has oversight of the risk management framework of the
Sub-Fund and specifically the effectiveness of the risk management function with respect to
governance and risk compliance. The Committee ensures that market risk, liquidity risk, credit
risk, counterparty risk and operational risk are identified, measured, monitored and managed in
line with the Sub-Fund®s Risk Profile and consistent with the Sub-Fund®s Prospectus and
Supplement. The Committee addresses any risk related issues and escalates to Board level if
deemed necessary. The Committee maintains the aim of spreading investment risk in the Sub-Fund.
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15. Financial Instruments (continued)

General Risk Management Process (continued)

The Committee has four members made up of two members from the Investment Manager and two from
Carne. The Committee meets at least monthly and may meet more regularly as circumstances dictate.
At least once a financial year, the Committee reviews its performance and Terms of Reference with
respect to its operational effectiveness and recommends changes to the Board if necessary.

Carne monitors the consistency between the investment strategy, objective and profile of the
portfolio with respect to what has been communicated to investors through the Sub-Fund®s
Prospectus and Supplement.

Carne reviews and identifies operational risks affecting the Sub-Fund and addresses any
shortcomings across any of the processes of the service providers that may impact the Sub-Fund.
The Investment Manager manages the Sub-Fund®s risk management process under the supervision of
the Investment Advisory Council and oversight of these functions is carried out by both the
Depositary, and by the Board of Directors of the AIFM.

The Investment Manager is organised by function with distinct separation of responsibility
between Sub-Fund managers, traders and investment administration personnel. A number of
techniques which are outlined below are employed by the Investment Manager to ensure good
corporate governance as follows:

the management process is monitored by members of the board;

the engagement of statutory auditors (a Japanese Corporate Lawyer who is entrusted by

shareholders with overseeing and auditing the business executions and conducts of Directors

who are often executive officers. In addition to the Board of Directors, a statutory

auditor legally constitutes an essential part of corporate governance);

Investment Policy Committee; and

Compliance Committee and Compliance Officer.

The risk management process consists of a multi-layered and cross-functional review that provides
a system of checks and balances as stipulated in a series of in-house rules (i.e. Risk Management
Code, Investment Management Guideline and Manual, Trader Guideline and Manual, etc.). Risks
specific to the Sub-Fund are managed by the relevant fund management teams with support of
trading teams, investment administration teams and compliance teams.
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15. Financial Instruments (continued)

General Risk Management Process (continued)

In this process, fund management teams are to make investment judgements and to order executions
strictly in accordance with internal investment management rules and procedures. The risk
management of the Sub-Fund is inherently built into the Sub-Fund by means of portfolio
construction and managed strictly in accordance with the internal guidelines and manuals.

Internal audits are conducted on a regular and timely basis to ensure that the risk management
processes are operating effectively.

As defined by the standard, risk can be separated into the following components: market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. Each type of risk is discussed in turn and qualitative and
quantitative analyses are provided where relevant to give the reader an understanding of the risk
management methods used by the Investment Manager and the Board of Directors of the AIFM.

(a) Market Risk

This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: market price risk, currency risk and
interest rate risk.

(i) Market Price Risk

This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk and
interest rate risk), whether those factors are caused by factors specific to individual financial
instruments or its issuer, or other factors affecting similar financial instruments traded in the
market. The Sub-Fund will generally be fully invested in a range of Japanese equities listed
mainly on the Tokyo Stock Exchange Market.

Since inception of the Sub-Fund, the TOPIX index has appreciated by 5.81% whilst the Sub-Fund has
depreciated by 33.31%.
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15. Financial Instruments (continued)

(a) Market Risk (continued)

(i) Market Price Risk (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis

IT the TOPIX had increased by 10% on 31 December 2019, with all other variables remaining
constant, based on the Sub-Fund"s performance of the previous 12 months, the increase in Net
Assets attributable to Redeemable Participating Unitholders would be approximately -JP\48 million
(31 December 2018: JP\20 million). Conversely, if the TOPIX had decreased by 10%, this would have
decreased Net Assets attributable to Redeemable Participating Unitholders by approximately JP\144
million (31 December 2018: JP\74 million).

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

There are limitations in relation to the sensitivity analysis on market risk as sensitivity
analyses are based on historical data and cannot take account of the fact that future market
price movements, correlations between markets and levels of market liquidity in conditions of
market stress may bear no relation to historical patterns. The market price risk information is a
relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accurate number and future market conditions
could vary significantly from those experienced in the past. The sensitivity analysis assumes
that the relative performance of the Sub-Fund to the TOPIX remains unchanged.

(i1) Currency Risk

Currency risk is defined as the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. This risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency in which they are measured. All the
monetary and non-monetary financial assets of the Sub-Fund are denominated in the functional
currency i.e. Japanese Yen. Certain expenses are paid/payable in currencies other than Japanese
Yen but these do not represent a significant currency risk exposure.
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15. Financial Instruments (continued)

(a) Market Risk (continued)

(ii1) Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The majority of the Sub-Fund*s financial
assets are equity shares and other instruments which neither pay interest nor have a maturity
date. Cash balances of the Sub-Fund are not subject to significant interest rate risk.

(b) Credit Risk
This is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Credit Risk in the Sub-Fund is very low as it does not invest in exchange traded debt securities,
futures or derivative instruments of any type.

The Sub-Fund®s Depositary is The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch. Substantially all
of the assets and cash of the Sub-Fund are held within the custodial network of the Depositary.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Depositary may cause the Sub-Fund®s rights with respect to its
investments in debt and equity securities held by the Depositary to be delayed or limited. The
maximum exposure to this risk at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is the total fair value of
investments disclosed in the Schedule of Investments as well as total cash balances held.

In accordance with the requirements of the Trust Deed and the AIF Rulebook, the Sub-Fund®s
securities are maintained within the Depositary®s custodial network in segregated accounts. The
Depositary will ensure that any agents it appoints to assist in safekeeping the assets of the
Sub-Fund will segregate the assets of the Sub-Fund. Thus, in the event of insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Depositary, the Sub-Fund®s assets are segregated and protected and this further
reduces counterparty risk. The Sub-Fund will, however, be exposed to the risk of the Depositary
or certain depositaries used by the Depositary, in relation to the Sub-Fund*s cash held by the
Depositary.
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15. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

In the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Depositary, the Sub-Fund will be treated as a

general creditor of the Depositary in relation to cash holdings of the Sub-Fund. The S&P long-
term credit rating of The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch was AA- at 31 December

2019. The S&P long-term credit rating of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, the ultimate
parent of BNY Mellon Trust Company (lreland) Limited (former Depositary), was A at 31 December
2018.

The Sub-Fund has granted a continuing security interest by way of a charge over its assets to the
Depositary and its affiliates, pursuant to the Deed of Novation dated 29 September 2017 between
the AIFM on behalf of the Fund and the Depositary, as continuing security for the payment,
discharge and performance of its obligations.

(c) Liquidity Risk

This is the risk that the Sub-Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. The ability to sell shares quickly to meet redemption orders, at any
time, is the principal liquidity risk that the Investment Manager manages. To meet the redemption
liability, the Sub-Fund may be required to sell securities. To manage this risk, the internal
fund management rule stipulates that a minimum of 25% of the Net Asset Value is to be invested in
blue chip organisations.

All the investments held are actively traded listed equity securities which are deemed to be

highly liquid and therefore no arrangements are in place for the management of positions with
gates, side pockets, lock up provisions, and or any other similar arrangements.
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15. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Liquidity Risk (continued)

The AIFM is entitled to limit the number of Units of the Sub-Fund repurchased on any dealing day
to 10% of the total number of Units of the Sub-Fund in issue, if in its judgement a repurchase
request exceeding 10% of the total number of Units of the Sub-Fund in issue may adversely affect
the interest of the Sub-Fund or its Unitholders. In this event, the limitation will apply pro
rata so that all Unitholders wishing to have their Units repurchased on that dealing day realise
the same proportion of such Units and Units not repurchased, but which would otherwise have been
repurchased, will be carried forward for repurchase on the next dealing day, provided that
requests for repurchase which have been carried forward from an earlier dealing day shall
(subject always to the foregoing limits) be complied with in priority to later requests. Units of
the Sub-Fund may be liable for a repurchase charge of up to 1% of the Net Asset Value per Unit of
each Unit repurchased.

All of the financial liabilities at 31 December 2019 and at 31 December 2018 are due within one
month.

(d) Fair value estimation

IFRS 13 * Fair Value Measurement®, requires the Sub-Fund to classify fair value measurements
using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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15. Financial Instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value estimation (continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, all financial assets are classified as Level 1.
Financial assets, the values of which are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and
therefore classified within Level 1, include active listed equities. The Sub-Fund does not adjust
the quoted price for these instruments.

For all other financial assets and liabilities, the carrying value is an approximation of fair
value. These are cash and cash equivalents, debtors and creditors.

The puttable value of redeemable participating units is calculated based on the net difference
between total assets and all other liabilities of the Sub-Fund in accordance with the Sub-Fund®s
offering memorandum. A demand feature is attached to these shares, as they are redeemable at the
holders® option and can be put back to the Sub-Fund at any dealing date for cash equal to a
proportionate share of the Sub-Fund®s net asset value attributable to the unit class. The fair
value is based on the amount payable on demand. As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most
appropriate categorisation for net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
units.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of
the financial year and are deemed to have occurred when the pricing source or methodology used to

price an investment has changed which triggers a change in level as defined under IFRS 13.

There were no movements of financial instruments between Levels 1 and 2 during the financial year
ended 31 December 2019 or 31 December 2018.

There were no investments classified as Level 3 as at 31 December 2019 or 31 December 2018.
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16. Exchange Rates
As all assets held at the financial year end are denominated in Japanese Yen, no exchange rates

have been used for translation purposes. In respect of certain fees and outstanding payables at
the financial year end, the following exchange rates apply:

British Pound Sterling
Euro
United States Dollar

British Pound Sterling
Euro
United States Dollar

As at
31 December 2019

142.917495
122 .099526
108.985019

Average Foreign
Exchanges Rates
for the Financial Year
Ended 31 December 2019

139.046088
122.017645
109.002352

As at
31 December 2018

140.012293
126.456190
110.284979

Average Foreign
Exchanges Rates
for the Financial Year
Ended 31 December 2018

147.385391
130.386086
110.412117

17. Efficient Portfolio Management

The Sub-Fund may employ techniques and instruments for the purposes of efficient portfolio
management and to provide protection against exchange rate risks in accordance with the
conditions and limits set down by the Central Bank as outlined in the AIF Rulebook. Furthermore,
new techniques and instruments may be developed which may be suitable for use by the Sub-Fund in
the future and the Sub-Fund may employ such techniques and instruments subject to disclosure in
the relevant Sub-Fund Supplement and the prior approval of, and any restrictions imposed by, the
Central Bank.

No financial derivative instruments were used by the Sub-Fund for the purposes of efficient
portfolio management during the financial year (31 December 2018: None).

18. Capital Management
The capital of the Sub-Fund is represented by the net assets. The amount of net assets can change

significantly on a daily basis, as the Sub-Fund is subject to daily subscriptions and redemptions
at the discretion of the Unitholders.
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18. Capital management (continued)
The ownership of the Sub-Fund is concentrated, with a small number of investors holding
significant Units. As a result, a redemption request by a significant Unitholder may have a
significant impact on the liquidity of the Sub-Fund and their ability to continue as a going
concern.
The Sub-Fund®s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to achieve its overall objective of long-term capital growth and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the development of its investment activities.
The Investment Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets.
19. Significant Events during the Financial Year
An addendum to the Prospectus was issued on 15 February 2019.
Effective 15 February 2019, Yuki - Co, LLC was appointed as International Placement Agent
pursuant to an agreement dated 15 February 2019 between Yuki - Co, LLC, the Investment Manager
and the AIFM.
Ms.Sarah Murphy was appointed to the Board of Directors of the AIFM on 5 June 2019.
Ms.Elizabeth Beazley resigned from the Board of Directors of the AIFM on 31 October 2019.
Effectivel December 2019, the Depositary of the Fund, BNY Mellon Trust Company (lreland) Limited
('TCIL™) was merged into The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV ('BNY Mellon SA/NV'") as part of a
restructuring of the legal entities within The Bank of New York Mellon group of companies to
simplify its legal entity structure and to streamline the operational processes for the Europe,
Middle East and Africa (* EMEA” ) region.
As a result of the merger, the services currently provided by TCIL to the Fund are now provided
by The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch (“'BNY Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch™), being

BNY Mellon SA/NV*®s branch in Dublin, with effect from that date.

Mr. Kevin Nolan resigned from the Board of Directors of the AIFM on 18 December 2019.
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19. Significant Events during the Financial Year (continued)

There were no other significant events affecting the Fund or the Sub-Fund during the financial
year.

20. Significant Events after the Financial Year End

Mr. David McGowan was appointed to the Board of Directors of the AIFM effective 12 February 2020.

The COVID-19 epidemic is believed to have originated in Wuhan, Hubei, China. While containment
efforts were made to slow the spread of the epidemic, the outbreak has now spread globally and
has led to the World Health Organisation declaring the COVID-19 outbreak a pandemic on 11 March
2020.

The Board of Directors of the AIFM is aware that global financial markets have been monitoring
and reacting to the outbreak. All markets have incurred increased volatility and uncertainty
since the onset of the pandemic.

The Board of Directors of the AIFM has also noted the operational risks that are posed to the
Sub-Fund and its service providers due to global and local movement restrictions that have been
enacted by various governments. COVID-19 pandemic is an unprecedented event and the eventual
impact on the global economy and markets will largely depend on the scale and duration of the
outbreak. The Board of Directors of the AIFM will continue to monitor this situation.

Since the financial year end to 21 April 2020, the performance of the Sub-Fund has seen a
decrease of 18.43%.

Other than the above, there were no significant events affecting the Fund or the Sub-Fund after
the financial year end.

21. Approval of the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements

The Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the
AIFM on 21 April 2020.
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Nominal Security Name Fair Va;gs Aﬁsgi;
Equities
Advertising - Nil (31 December 2018: 1.68%)
Auto Parts & Equipments - 0.96% (31 December 2018: 3.37%)
6,000 Futaba Industrial Co Ltd 4,620,000 0.96
Building Materials - 2.57% (31 December 2018: 1.68%)
800 Daikin Industries Ltd 12,360,000 2.57
Chemicals - 2.83% (31 December 2018: 4.05%)
5,600 Taiyo Nippon Sanso Corp 13,596,800 2.83
Commercial Services - 8.94% (31 December 2018: 17.82%)
2,600 Aeon Delight Co Ltd 10,205,000 2.13
500 Nihon M&A Center Inc 1,882,500 0.39
27,000  S-Pool Inc 22,815,000 4.75
1,800 TKP Corp 8,019,000 1.67
Computers - 9.69% (31 December 2018: 3.93%)
12,200 Bell System24 Holdings Inc 20,984,000 4.37
2,500 Gig Works Inc 4,820,000 1.00
1,700 I'tochu Techno-Solutions Corp 5,227,500 1.09
4,100 Nomura Research Institute Ltd 9,585,800 2.00
400 Obic Co Ltd 5,904,000 1.23
Cosmetics/Personal Care - 7.13% (31 December 2018: 3.95%)
1,700 Kao Corp 15,342,500 3.20
300 Kose Corp 4,800,000 1.00
1,000 Shiseido Co Ltd 7,782,000 1.62
1,700  Unicharm Corp 6,290,000 1.31
Distribution/Wholesale - Nil (31 December 2018: 3.85%)
Diversified Financial Services - Nil (31 December 2018: 0.47%)
Electric - 1.78% (31 December 2018: 3.59%)
4,700 eRex Co Ltd 8,558,700 1.78
Electrical Components & Equipments - Nil (31 December 2018: 0.94%)
Electronics - 8.83% (31 December 2018: 9.24%)
5,000 Fujitsu General Ltd 12,295,000 2.56
1,100 Hoya Corp 11,495,000 2.40
900 Nidec Corp 13,504,500 2.81
2,500 Restar Holdings Corp 5,075,000 1.06
Engineering & Construction - Nil (31 December 2018: 1.78%)
Entertainment - 1.61% (31 December 2018: Nil)
1,700 Toho Co Ltd/Tokyo 7,726,500 1.61
Food - 3.09% (31 December 2018: Nil)
1,300 Kikkoman Corp 6,981,000 1.45
1,900 Nichirei Corp 4,845,000 1.01
500 Yakult Honsha Co Ltd 3,015,000 0.63
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Nominal Security Name Fair Va;gs Aﬁsgi;
Equities (continued)
Hand/Machine Tools - Nil (31 December 2018: 0.54%)
Healthcare-Products - 5.40% (31 December 2018: Nil)
5,700 Olympus Corp 9,627,300 2.01
900  Shimadzu Corp 3,096,000 0.64
3,400  Terumo Corp 13,209,000 2.75
Home Builders - Nil (31 December 2018: 3.99%)
Home Furnishings - Nil (31 December 2018: 4.24%)
Internet - 6.36% (31 December 2018: 2.66%)
5,000 Full Speed Inc 2,475,000 0.51
1,500 Kamakura Shinsho Ltd 2,586,000 0.54
2,700 M3 Inc 8,923,500 1.86
1,100  MonotaRO Co Ltd 3,215,300 0.67
7,100  Syuppin Co Ltd 8,867,900 1.85
500 Trend Micro Inc/Japan 2,800,000 0.58
800  Z0Z0 Inc 1,669,600 0.35

Leisure Time - Nil (31 December 2018: 0.63%)
Machinery-Diversified - 4.01% (31 December 2018: 4.68%)
500 Keyence Corp 19,245,000 4.01
Metal Fabricate/Hardware - Nil (31 December 2018: 2.73%)
Pharmaceuticals - 11.13% (31 December 2018: 2.25%)

5,400 Astellas Pharma Inc 10,098,000 2.10
1,900 Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd 13,733,200 2.86
900 Eisai Co Ltd 7,383,600 1.54
1,100 Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 10,197,000 2.12
200 Nippon Shinyaku Co Ltd 1,894,000 0.40
1,500 Shionogi & Co Ltd 10,150,500 2.11
Real Estate - 1.90% (31 December 2018: 0.76%)
4,700 Wealth Management Inc/ Tokyo 9,108,600 1.90
Retail - 13.44% (31 December 2018: 4.04%)
300 Fast Retailing Co Ltd 19,500,000 4.06
1,500 McDonald*s Holdings Co Japan Ltd 7,860,000 1.64
14,600 Nextage Co Ltd 18,761,000 3.91
6,300 QB Net Holdings Co Ltd 16,323,300 3.40
300 Welcia Holdings Co Ltd 2,085,000 0.43
Semiconductors - Nil (31 December 2018: 5.30%)
Software - 1.17% (31 December 2018: Nil)
11,700  Sourcenext Corp 5,604,300 1.17
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Nominal Security Name Fair Va;gs Aﬁsgi;
Equities (continued)
Storage/Warehousing - Nil (31 December 2018: 2.03%)
Telecommunications - Nil (31 December 2018: 1.27%)
Transportation - 3.96% (31 December 2018: 4.81%)
400 Keio Corp 2,644,000 0.55
3,200 Nankai Electric Railway Co Ltd 9,491,200 1.98
2,700 Odakyu Electric Railway Co Ltd 6,887,700 1.43
Z;g?ggg?;sgisets at fair value through profit or loss (Cost: JP\ 455,165,800 94.80
Debtors (31 December 2018: 2.06%) 1,280,441 0.27
Cash and cash equivalents (31 December 2018: 6.33%) 46,943,682 9.78
Total Assets 503,389,923 104.85
Creditors (31 December 2018: (4.67)%) (23,242,245) (4.85)
Net Assets 480,147,678 100.00

Net Asset Value
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Net Asset Value JP\480,147,678 JP\540,623,740 JP\1,096,961,907
Number of Units 72,000 77,000 107,000
Net Asset Value per Unit JP\6,669 JP\7,021 JP\10,252
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2020

417,674,526

24,702,606

392,971,920

72,000

5,458
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1
( 2020 1,000 11 6,000
1,575,100 8,271 1,575,100
2016 1,575,100
2017 1,575,100
2018 1,575,100
2019 1,575,100
2020 1,575,100
(¢
2011
2011 352
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2020 282
59,890,559,043.34

72 282 59,890,559,043.34
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131

23 103

2020 30
116.00
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2019 31
2019 2018

303,514 35,208 323,463 37,522

12 9,075,000 1,052,700 5,875,000 681,500
9,378,514 1,087,908 6,198,463 719,022

13 1,322,942 153,461 1,153,363 133,790
14 11,286,341 1,309,216 6,740,553 781,904
12,609,283 1,462,677 7,893,916 915,694

15 (7,304,176)  (847,284) (3,601,389)  (417,761)

5,305,107 615,392 4,292,527 497,933

14,683,621 1,703,300 10,490,990 1,216,955

14,683,621 1,703,300 10,490,990 1,216,955

17 1,575,100 182,712 1,575,100 182,712
18 11,290,000 1,309,640 7,790,000 903,640
18 1,818,521 210,948 1,125,890 130,603

14,683,621 1,703,300 10,490,990 1,216,955

2019 25 2019 25
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2019 31
2019 2018

5,490,082 636,850 3,674,678 426,263

5,490,082 636,850 3,674,678 426,263

(4,664,774)  (541,114) (3,133,296)  (363,462)

825,308 95,736 541,382 62,800

552 64 386 45

(31,432) (3,646) (8,420) (977)

794,428 92,154 533,348 61,868

10 (101,797) (11,808) (69,287) (8,037)

692,631 80,345 464,061 53,831

692,631 80,345 464,061 53,831

2019 2018
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2019 31
2018 1,575,100 182,712 7,790,000 903,640 1,125,890 130,603 10,490,990 1,216,955
692,631 80,345 692,631 80,345
692,631 80,345 692,631 80,345
3,500,000 406,000 3,500,000 406,000

2019 31 1,575,100 182,712 11,290,000 1,309,640 1,818,521 210,948 14,683,621 1,703,300
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2018 31
2017 1,575,100 182,712 2,890,000 335,240 661,829 76,772 5,126,929 594,724
464,061 53,831 464,061 53,831
464,061 53,831 464,061 53,831
4,900,000 568,400 4,900,000 568,400

2018 31 1,575,100 182,712 7,790,000 903,640 1,125,890 130,603 10,490,990 1,216,955
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2019 31
2019 2018
692,631 80,345 464,061 53,831
19,948 2,314 20,948 2,430
31,432 3,646 8,420 977
(552) (64) (386) (45)
101,797 11,808 69,287 8,037

(130,568) (15,146)  (601,411) (69,764)

(39,010) (4,525)
15,390 1,785 6,941 805
3,687,883 427,794 677,042 78,537
(102,283) (11,865) (35,017) (4,062)
4,276,668 496,093 609,885 70,747

(3,200,000)  (371,200) (3,600,000)  (417,600)
552 64 386 45
(3,199,448)  (371,136) (3,599,614)  (417,555)

(31,432) (3,646) (8,420) 977)
3,500,000 406,000 4,900,000 568,400
3,468,568 402,354 4,891,580 567,423
4,545,788 527,311 1,901,851 220,615
6,740,553 781,904 4,838,702 561,289

11,286,341 1,309,216 6,740,553 781,904
11,286,341 1,309,216 6,740,553 781,904

11,286,341 1,309,216 6,740,553 781,904
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2019 31
1.1

102

2014
102
1.2
1.3
102 3.17(d)
33 33.7 1.12
WWW.Cro.ie

1.4

1.5
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1.6

1.7
24

1.8

1.9

1.10
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1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

20
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2019 2018
5,490,082 3,674,678
5,490,082 3,674,678
2019 2018
5,490,082 3,674,678
5,490,082 3,674,678
2019 2018
19,948 20,948
(23,894) 20,407

2019 2018
4,000 4,000

4,000 4,000
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2019 2018
66,512 46,250
66,512 46,250

2018

2019 2018
1 1

2019 2018
66,512 46,250
66,512 46,250

2019 2018
552 386

2019 2018
31,432 8,420
31,432 8,420

149/265



EDINETOOOO
OOo0oDOoO0oDoooDo0oDo0obDoooooo0b0o0o0ooo(esL7o1)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 2018
101,797 69,287
101,797 69,287
101,797 69,287
101,797 69,287
12.5 2018 12.5 2018
2019 2018
794,428 533,348
12.5 2018 12.5 99,304 66,669
2,493 2,618

101,797 69,287
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2019

2018

2018

2019
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31

31

31
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418,966

418,966

95,503

19,948

115,451

303,515

323,463

5,875,000

3,200,000

9,075,000
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100
L-
2633 6B
ECAM 7BA 100
100
L-
2633 6B
31
7,335,231 801,280
314,993 (881,763)
134,600 (15,400)
2019 2018
304,487 455,969
39,010
235
19,962 10,049
959,248 687,345

1,322,942 1,153,363
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14

15

16

2019 2018
11,286,341 6,740,553
11,286,341 6,740,553

2019 2018

19,154 9,618
7,218,872 3,530,988
32,509 32,995
33,641 27,789
7,304,176 3,601,390

2019 2018

11,286,341 6,740,553
304,487 455,969
979,210 697,394

39,010

12,609,048 7,893,916
(19,154) (9,618)
(33,641) (27,789)

(7,218,871) (3,530,988)

(7,271,666)

(3,568, 395)
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17

18

19

20

21

2019 2018
1.00 1,575,100
2018 1,575,100 1,575,100 1,575,100
2019 2018
2018 1,125,890 661,829
692,631 464,061
2019 31 1,818,521 1,125,890
2019 2018
2018 7,790,000 2,890,000
3,500,000 4,900,000
2019 31 11,290,000 7,790,000

2019

2019 25
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS {IRELAND) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
2019 2me
Mate € €
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assats 303514 323,463
Investments 12 9,075,000 5,875,000
9,378,514 6,198,453
Currant assels
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 13 1,322,842 1,153,363
Cash at bank and in hand 14 11,286,341 8,740,553
12,608,283 7,883,918
Creditors: amounts faling due within one
year 15 17,304,176} {3,601, 383)
Net cumrent assets 5,305,107 4,292 527
Total assets less current liabilitles 14,683 621 10,490,890
MNet assets 14,683,621 10,490,990
——_— _ =
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital presented as aguity 1 1,675,100 1,575,100
Capital Contribution 18 11,290,000 7,790,000
Profit and loss account 18 1,818,521 1,125,890
Shareholders’ funds 14,683,621 10,490,990
The financial statem ants ware approved and authaorised for issue by the Board:
S
Date: 1566,/ Date: 25,70€./719
The notes on pages 12 to 22 form part of these financial statements,
Page 9
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2018 2018

Note € €

Turmcwver 3 5.490,082 3674678
Gross profit 5490,082 3674678
Administrative expenses (4,664, 774) (3,133 298)

Operating profit 825,308 291,382
Interest receivable and similar income 8 552 386

A

Interest payable and expenses 9 (31,432 (8,420)

Profit before tax 794,428 533348

Tax on profit 10 (101,797) (69, 287)

Profit for the financial year 692,631 464061
& |

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year 692,631 464,061

There were no recognised gains and losses for 2019 or 2018 other than those included in the statement of
comprehensive income,

Page &
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Called up Other Profit and
share capital rasarves loss account Total aquity
€ € € €
At 1 April 2018 1,575,100 7,790,000 1,125,800 410,490,990
Comprahbensive income for the year
Praofit for the year - - 692,631 692,631
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 692,631 692,631
Capital Contribution - 3,500,000 - 3,500,000
At 31 March 2019 1,575100 11,290,000 1,818,529 14,683,621
—_—— _—

The notes on pages 12 to 22 form part of thesa financial statem ents.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Called up Other Profit and
share capital reserves loss account Total equity
£ £ € €
At 1 Apnl 2017 1,575,100 2,890,000 661,820 5,126,929
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - 464,061 464,061
Other comprahensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 464,061 464,061
Capltal Contribution - 4,800,000 - 4,900,000
At 31 March 2018 1,575,100 7,790,000 1,125,890 10,490,990

The notes on pages 12 1o 22 form part of these financial statem ents.

Page 10
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2018 2018
€ €

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the financial year 692,631 464 061
Adjustments for:
Amorisation of intangible assets 19,848 20 948
Interest paid 31,432 8420
Interest received (552) {386
Taxation charge 104,797 69,287
{Increase} in deblors (130,568) {801,411)
{Increase )/decrease in amounts owed by groups (39,0410) -
Increase in creditors 15,380 6941
Increase in amounts owed 1o groups 3,687,883 677,042
Corporation tax (paid) (102,283) (35,017)
Met cash generated from operating activities 4,276,668 609,885
Cash flow s from investing activities
Purchase of fixed asset investments (3.200,000) (3600000
Interest received 552 386
Met cash from investing activities (3,199,448) (3.599.614)
Cash flow s from financing activities
Interest paid (31,432 (&,420)
Members’ capital contributed 3,500,000 4,900,000
Met cash used in financing activities 3 468,568 4,891,580
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,545,788 1,901,851
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,740,553 4,838,702
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 11,286,341 6, 740, 553
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year comprise:
Cash at bank and in hand 11,286,341 &, 740,553

11,286,341 6,740,553

The notes on pages 12 to 22 form part of these financial statements.

Page 11
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

13

14

15

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have bean prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102,
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland and Insh statule
comprising of the Companies Act 2014,

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of cerain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in applying the
Company's accounting policies (see note 2).

The following principal accounting policies have been applied:
Going concem

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance with the
historical cost convention modified to include certain items at fair value.

Disclosure exemption

The company has availed of exemptions contained in paragraph 1.12 FRS 102, the reguirements of
Section 2 Financial Statement Presentalion paragraph 3.17(d), the requirement of section 33 Related
Party Disclosures paragraph 33,7, The company is a subsidiary of Came Global Financial Services
Limited and the financial statements of the company are consolidated within and can be found on
WWWL GO,

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, Revenue is measured as the fair value of the
consideration received or recesvable, excluding discounts, rebates, value added tax and other sales
tawes. The following criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Rendering of services

Revenue from a confract to provide services is recognised in the perod in which the services are
provided in accordance with the stage of completion of the contract when all of the following
conditions are satisfied:

® the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the Company will receive the consideration due under the contract;

. the stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting pericd can be measured
reliably; and

. the costs incurred and the costs to complete the contract can be measured reliahly,

Valuation of investments

Investments in subsidianes are measured at cost less accumulated impairment.

Investments in unlisted Company shares, whose market value can be reliably determined, are
remeasured to market value at each balance sheet date. Gains and losses on remeasurement are

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period. Where market value cannot
be reliably determined, such investments are stated at historic cost less impairment,

Page 12
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Accounting policies (continued)

16

1.7

18

Debtors

Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment, Loans receivable are
measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash iz represented by ¢ash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repavable without penalty
on natice of not more than 24 hours, Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no
more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily converible to known
amourts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

Im the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable cn demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Financial instruments

The Company only enters into basic financial instrument transactions that result in the recognition of
financial assets and liabilities ke trade and other deblors and creditors. lcans from banks and other
third parties, loans to related parties and investments in non-puttable ordinary shares.

Debt instruments (other than those wholly repayable or receivable within one year), including loans
and other accounts receivable and payable, are initially measured at present value of the future cash
flows and subsequently at amordised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments that
are payable or receivable within ane year, typically trade debtors and creditors, are measured, initially
and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid
or received. Howewver, if the arrangements of a shorbterm instrument constitute a financing
transaction, like the payment of a trade debt deferred beyond normial business terms or financed at a
rate of interest that is not a market rate or in the case of an out-right short-term lcan not at market
rate, the financial asset or hability is measured, iniially. at the present value of the future cash flow
dizscounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument and subsequently at amortised
cost,

Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end of each
reporting pericd for objective evidence of impairent. If objective evidence of impairment is found, an
impairment loss is recognisad in the Statement of Comprehensive income.

For finandcial assets measured at amortised cost, the impaimient loss is measured as the difference
between an assel's carmang amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the
assel's original effective interest rate. If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the curent effective interest rate determined under the
contract.

For financial assets measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between an assel's carrying amount and best estimate of the recoverable amount, which is
an approximation of the amount that the Company would receive for the asset if @ were to be scold at
the balance sheet date.

Financial assets and liabilties are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet when
there is an enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

Page 13
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Accounting policias (continued)

1.8 Creditors
Short term creditors are measured at the transaction prce. Other finandial liabilities, including bank
loans, are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction cests, and are measured subsegquently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

1.10 Foreign currency transliation
Functional and presentation currancy
The Company's functional and presentational currency is Eurcs.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spol exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monefary items are translated using the closing rate. Mon-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

1.11 Finance costs
Finance costs are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the term of the debt
using the effectve interest method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carying
amount. Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated capital
instrument.

1.12 Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest
method,

1,13 Taxation
Tax is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, except that a charge attributable to an
item of income and expense recognised as other comprehensive income or to an item recognised
directly in equity is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates income.

1.14 Investment in subsidiaries undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are shown at historical cost less provision for impairments in
value.

Page 14
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Accounting policies (continued)
1.15 Other financial assets

Other financial assets include investments which are nat investments in subsidiaries, associates or
jeint ventures. Investments are initially measured at fair value which usually equates to the
transaction price and subsequently at fair value where investiments are listed on an active market or
where non listed investments can be reliably measured. Movements in fair value are measured in
the profit and loss.

When fair value cannol be measured rediably or can no longer be measured rediably, investments are
measured at cost less impamrment,

1.16 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration paid for the acquisition of shares in associates and
joint ventures over the fair value of the idenfifiable assets and liabilties. Goodwill is amorised to the
profit and loss account on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
Inves of goodwill on acquired businesses are up to 20 years, Usefud life is determined by reference to
the pericd over which the values of the underying businesses are expected to exceed the values of
their identifiable net assets,

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camrying
value may not be recoverable.

Judgments in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumplions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses.

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenences and cther
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumplions concerning the future, The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
hawve a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and l@bilites
within thie next financial year are discussed below.

Accrued Income

The Company has many customers who will generate income in the financial year that has not yet been
received. Each revenue stream is reviewed and the assumplions in calculating the accrued part of the
revenue is challenged by the Directors, The income is recognised as deferred when there is reasonable
assurance that it will be received and the company will recognise it in the profit and loss as income. Any
increase or decrease in this revenue accrual would have a significant impact on operating results, hence
the estimate calculated is based on a conservative approach,

Page 15
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CARME GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
Tumover

An analysis of turnowver by class of business is as follows:

2019 2018
€ €
Fund Management Services 5,490,082 3674678

5480082 3674678

Analysis of umover by country of destination;

2019 2018
© €
Republic of Ireland 5490,082 3674678

5490,082 3674678

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

The operating profit is stated after charging:

2018 2018
€ 3
Amortisation of intangible assats, including goodwill 19,948 20948
Exchange differences (23,894) 20407
Auditors' remuneration

2018 2018
€ €

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of
the Company's annual accounts 4,000 4,000
4,000 4.000

Page 16
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MAMAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 MARCH 2018

Staff Costs

Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, were as follows:

Wages and salaries

Capitalised emploves costs during the year amounted to €NIL (2078 - €NIL).

The average monthly number of employees, including the Directors, dunng the year was as follows:

Directors

Diractors’ remuneration

Directors' emolum ents

Interest receivable

Bank and other interest receivable

Interest payable and similar expenses

Other inlerest pavable

2019 2018
€ €
66,512 46,250
66,512 46,250
2019 20ie
Mo, Mo,
1 1
2019 2018
£ £
66,512 46, 250
66,512 46, 250
2019 2018
€ 3
552 386
2019 2018
€ €
31,432 & 420
3432 & 420

164/265
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MAMAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 MARCH 2018

Taxation
2019 2018
€ €
Corporation tax
Current tax on profits for the year 104,797 649,287
104,797 69,287
Total current tax 101,787 &9 287
Deferred tax
Total deferred tax - -
L]
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 101,787 69 287

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessad for the year is the same as (2018 - the same as) the standard rate of corporation tax in
Irefand of 12.5% (2018 - 12.5%) as s=t out below:

2019 2018
€ €
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 784,428 533,348
Praofit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation ax in
Ireland of 12.5% (2018 - 12.5%) 99,304 56,669
Effects of:
Mon-tax deductible amortisation of goodwill and impairment 2493 2618
Total tax charge for the year 10,797 59,2587

Factors that may affect future tax charges

There were no factors that may affect future tax charges.

Page 18
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Intangible assets
Goodwill
£
Cost
At 1 April 2018 418,966
At 31 March 2019 418,966
Amortisation
At 1 April 2018 95,503
Charge for the year 19,948
At 31 March 2018 115,451
MNet book value
At 31 March 2019 303,515
At 31 March 2018 323463
.
Financial assets
Investments
in
subsidiary
companies
€
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2018 5,875,000
Additions 3,200,000
At 31 March 2019 9,075,000
EE——

166/265
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Subsidiary undertakings

The following were subsidiary undertakings of the Company:

Class of
Mame Registerad office shares Holding
Came Global Fund Managers (Luxembourg) SA GB Route de Treves, L-  Ordinary 100%
2633 Senningerberg,
Luxembourg
Came Global Fund Managers (UK) Limited 5 0Old Bailey, Landon, Ordinary 100%
EC4M TBA
Carme Global Fund Services (Luxembourg) SA G5B Route de Treves, L-  Ordinary 100
2633 Senningerberg,
Luxembourg

The aggregate of the share capital and reserves as at 31 March 2019 and the profit or loss for the year
ended on that date for the subsidiary undertakings were as follows:

Aggregate
of share
capital and
Hame reserves ProfitLoss)
€ €
Came Global Fund Managers (Luxembourg) SA 7,335,231 B01,280
Came Global Fund Managers (UK) Limited 314,293 (881,763)
Came Global Fund Services (Luxembourg) SA 134,600 {15,400}
Debtors
2018 2018
€ €
Trade debtors 304,487 455 969
Amounts owed by group undertakings 39,010 -
VAT repayable 235 -
Prepayments 19,962 10,049
Accrued income 959,248 E87, 345
1,322,942 1,153,363
_——— =
Cash and cash aquivalents
2018 208
€ £
Cach at bank and in hand 11,286,341 B, 740,553

11,286,341 6,740,553

Page 20
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

15. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2018 2018
€ 3
Trade creditors 19,154 9618
Amounts owed to group undertakings 7,218,872 3,530,988
Corporation tax 32,509 32,995
Accruals 33,641 27,789
7,304,176 3,601,330
16. Fimancial instruments
2019 20418
€ €
Financial assets that are debt instruments measure at amortised cost
Bank & cash balances 11,286,341 6,740 553
Trade debtors 3nd,487 455969
Prepayments & accrued income 279,210 B97,394
Amounts due from group companies 39,010 -
12,609,048 7893916
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade creditors (19,154) (9,618
Accruals (33,841) (27, 789)
Amounts due to group companies (7.218,871) (3530988)
(7,271,668) (3568395
Page 21
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

Share capital

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid

1575100 (2018 - 1,575, 100) Ordinary Shares shares of €1.00 each

Reserves

Profit & loss account

As at 1 April 2018
Profitloss) for the year

As at 31 March 2019

Capital contributions

As at 1 April 2018

Capital Contribution - additions

As at 31 March 2019

Subsequent events

Sarah Murphy was appointed director of Came Global Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited on the 5th of June

2019

Controlling party

2018 2018
€ €

1,575,100 1,575,100

2019 2018

1,125,890 661,829
692,631 464,061

1,818,521 1125830

2019 2018
€ €

7,790,000 2,890,000
3,500,000 4900000

11,290,000 7,790,000

The Company is a 100% subsidiary of Came Global Financial Services Limited.

Approval of financial statements

The Board of Directors approved these financial statements for issue on 25 June 2018

169/265
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@

2019 30

2019 30 2019 31

293,540 34,051 303,514 35,208

13,375,000 1,551,500 9,075,000 1,052,700

13,668,540 1,585,551 9,378,514 1,087,908

1,376,542 159,679 1,322,707 153,434

16,536,338 1,918,215 11,286,341 1,309,216

17,912,880 2,077,894 12,609,048 1,462,650

(13,937,306) (1,616,727) (7,303,941)  (847,257)

3,975,574 461,167 5,305,107 615,392

17,644,114 2,046,717 14,683,621 1,703,300

10 1,575,100 182,712 1,575,100 182,712
14,790,000 1,715,640 11,290,000 1,309,640

1,279,014 148,366 1,818,521 210,948

11 17,644,114 2,046,717 14,683,621 1,703,300
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2019 30

2019

30 2018

30

3 3,403,073

4 (3,166,819)

394,756 2,662,948

(367,351) (2,076,213)

308,902

(240,841)

236,254

7,032

27,405 586,735

816 (4,581)

68,061

(531)

243,286

6 (32,793)

28,221 582,154

(3,804) (73,875)

67,530

(8,570)

210,493

24,417 508,279

58,960

14,683,621
210,493
3,500,000

(750,000)

1,703,300 10,490,990
24,417 508,279
406,000 1,500,000

(87,000)

1,216,955
58,960

174,000

17,644,114

2,046,717 12,499,269

1,449,915
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2019 30 2018 30
3,389,505 2,662,948
13,568

3,403,073 2,662,948

2019 30 2018 30
3,005,000 1,950,000
47,743 42,202
77,078 46,291
39,962 25,061
(41,690) (6,848)
2,000 2,000
24,955 6,124
1,328 1,026
9,974 9,974
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469 383
3,166,819 2,076,213

2019 30 2018 30
39,962 25,061

2018

2019 30 2018 30
32,793 73,875
243,286 582,154
12.5 30,411 72,769
2,382 1,106
32,793 73,875
2019 9,075,000
4,300,000
2019 30 13,375,000
2019 30 13,375,000
2019 31 9,075,000

2019 30 2019 31

255,711 304,487
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10

39,010 39,010
1,061,821 959,248
20,000 19,962
1,376,542 1,322,707
2019 30 2019 31
21,557 19,154
13,768,848 7,218,871
64,543 32,275
82,358 33,641
13,937,306 7,303,941
2019 30 2019 31
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
1,575,100 1,575,100 1,575,100
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1,575,100 11,290,000 1,818,521 14,683,621
210,493 210,493
3,500,000 3,500,000
(750,000) (750,000)
1,575,100 14,790,000 1,279,014 17,644,114
100
3,066,132
4,219,843
13,468,848
2019 31 300,000
2019 31 39,010
2019 10 31
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Q1

2020 347,000,000
2

2010 2010 12
90
90
The Bank of New York

Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch
@

2020 1,754,385,526 2,035 872
2

1994 10 13
1995

35 100

2020
31 35.2 1.8
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BNY Mellon Fund Services (lreland) Designated Activity Company

(1

2020 221,935,000 237 1,819
(¢

1994 31
1995

¢!

2020 1,251
2

The Bank of New York
Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch

BNY Mellon Fund Services (lreland) Designated Activity Company
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1989 UCITS
UCITS
1893 1972
1989 6 1 1989
1989 78 1989
EC 1985 12 20 85/611
1985 2002 2 13
01/107/EC 2001/108/EC UCITS
2003 5 29 2003
2003 211 UCITS 1989
2011
UCITS 1
UCITS V 2014/91/EU
2016
UCITS V 2013 7 22
2011/61/EU AIFMD
AIFMD UCITS
2015 3 12 2015
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Independent auditor®s report to the unitholders of Yuki Mizuho Japan Dynamic
Growth Fund
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on the financial statements of Yuki Mizuho Japan Dynamic Growth Fund (the' Fund’ )

In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the
Fund as at 31 December 2019 and of the loss for the financial year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework,
the applicable Regulations and the provisions of the Trust Deed.

The financial statements we have audited comprise:

the Statement of Comprehensive Income;

the Statement of Financial Position;

the Statement of Changes in Equity;

the Statement of Cash Flows; and

the related notes 1 to 21, including a summary of significant accounting policies as set out
innote 1.

The relevant financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (* the
relevant financial reporting framework” ).

The applicable regulations that have been applied in their preparation is the Unit Trusts Act, 1990
and the European Union (Alternative Investment Fund Managers) Regulations 2013 (as amended) and

the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No.231/2013 (* the applicable Regulations” ).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (I1SAs
(Ireland)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are described below in
the” Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in lIreland, including the Ethical Standard issued
by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (1AASA), as applied to public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:
Valuation of investments
Existence of investments

Materiality The materiality that we used in the current year was JPY5,190,930
which was determined on the basis of 1% of Average Net Assets.

Scoping Our audit is a risk based approach taking into account the structure
of the Fund, types of investments, the involvement of the third
parties service providers, the accounting processes and controls in
place and the industry in which the Fund operates.

The Fund is established as an open ended umbrella Unit trust under the
Unit Trusts Act 1990. We have conducted our audit based on the books
and records maintained by the administrator BNY Mellon Fund Services
(Ireland) Limited, Guild House, Guild Street, IFSC, Dublin 1, Ireland.

Significant There have been no significant changes in our approach from our prior year
changes in our audit.
approach

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the fol lowing matters in relation to which 1SAs (Ireland)
require us to report to you where:

the AIFM®s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or

the AIFM has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Fund"s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
inour audit of the financial statements of the current financial year and include the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified,
including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the al location of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Key audit matter For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 the investments of the
description Fund JPY455,165,800 amount to 94.8% of total net assets of
JPY480,147,678. The valuation of Level 1 investments is considered a
key audit matter as the investments represent a significant balance on
the Statement of Financial Position. This is also the main driver of
the Fund"s performance and has been identified as the most significant
risk of material misstatement.

Refer also to note 15 in the financial statements.

How the scope of our | We have performed the following audit procedures to address the risk:
audit responded to
the key audit We obtained an understanding and assessed the design of the key
matter controls that have been implemented over the valuation process for
Level 1 investments.

We obtained Bank of New York Mellon®"s service auditors® SOC 1
report and identified the key controls in place over the
valuation process and reviewed those key controls for any
exceptions.

We considered if the Fund®s valuation policy for investments is
in line with IFRS 13.

We agreed the prices of Level 1 investments in the investment
portfolio at year-end to prices published by independent pricing
sources.

Existence of Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Key audit matter The investment portfolio at the year-end comprised listed equity
description investments valued at JPY455,165,800. The existence of investments is
considered a key audit matter as the investments represent a
significant balance on the Statement of Financial Position. This is
also the main driver of the Fund®s performance and has been identified
as a higher risk of material misstatement.

The existence of and good title to the Fund®s investments is crucial
to ensuring the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. There is a risk that the investments may not exist at
year end.

Refer also to note 15 in the financial statements.

How the scope of our | We have performed the following audit procedures to address the risk:
audit responded to
the key audit We obtained BNY Mellon service auditor®s report SOC 1 Report and
matter identified the key controls in place over the valuation process
and reviewed those key controls for any exceptions.

We obtained independent confirmations from the depositary and
other counterparties at the financial year end and agreed the
amounts held to the investment portfolio.
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Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and not to express an opinion on individual accounts or
disclosures. Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified with respect to any of the
risks described above, and we do not express an opinion on these individual matters.

Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person, relying on the financial statements, would be
changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work.

We determined material ity for the Fund to be JPY5,190,930 which is 1% of average net assets. We have
considered the average net assets to be the critical component for determining materiality because
the main objective of the Fund is to provide investors with a total return. We have considered
quantitative and qual itative factors such as understanding the Fund and its environment,
complexity of the Fund and the reliability of the control environment.

We agreed with the AIFM that we would report to the AIFM any audit differences in excess of
JPY259,547 or 5% of materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the AIFM on disclosure matters that
we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our audit is a risk based approach taking into account the structure of the Fund, types of
investments, the involvement of the third parties service providers, the accounting processes and
controls in place and the industry in which the Fund operates. The Fund is incorporated as an open-
ended umbrella Unit trust with variable capital and is organised under the laws of Ireland as a unit
trust pursuant to the Unit Trusts Act, 1990. The Fund is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland
(the “Central Bank™) as a Retail Investor Alternative Investment Fund under the Central Bank AIF
Rulebook. The Fund is organised as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between Sub Funds. We
have conducted our audit based on the books and records maintained by the administrator BNY Mellon
at One Dockland Central, Guild Street, IFSC, Dublin1, Ireland.

Other information

The AIFM is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, other than the
financial statements and our auditor™s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the AIFM

The AIFM is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view and otherwise comply with the relevant financial reporting
framework and for such internal control as the AIFM determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the AIFM is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the AIFM either intends to liquidate the Fund or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor”s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs (Ireland), we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the AIFM.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the AIFM"s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of the auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that the auditor identifies during the audit.

For listed entities and public interest entities, the auditor also provides those charged
with governance with a statement that the auditor has complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (lreland)
2016, and communicates with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on the auditor®s independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Where the auditor is required to report on key audit matters, from the matters communicated
with those charged with governance, the auditor determines those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. The auditor describes these matters in the auditor®s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, the auditor determines that a matter should not be communicated in the
auditor®s report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

This report is made solely to the Fund®s unitholders, as a body, in accordance with the
applicable Regulations and the provisions of the Trust Deed. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Fund®s unitholders those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor®s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund
and the Fund"s unitholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the applicable Regulations
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for
the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Fund were sufficient to permit the
financial statements to be readily and properly audited.

The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Corporate Governance Statement
We report, in relation to information given in the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 2 to 4

that:

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken during the course of the audit, the
information given in the Corporate Governance Statement pursuant to subsections 2(c) of
section 1373 of the Companies Act 2014 is consistent with the Fund®s statutory financial
statements in respect of the financial year concerned and such information has been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Fund and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in this information.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken during the course of the audit, the
Corporate Governance Statement contains the information required by Regulation 6(2)of
the European Union (Disclosure of Non-Financial and Diversity Information by certain
large undertakings and groups) Regulations 2017 (as amended); and

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken during the course of the audit, the
information required pursuant to section 1373(2)(a),(b),(e) and (f) of the Companies Act
2014 is contained in the Corporate Governance Statement.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Based on the knowledge and understanding of the Fund and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors” report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the provisions in the Companies Act 2014 which require us to
report to you if, inour opinion, the disclosures of directors”remuneration and transactions
specified by law are not made.
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Other matters which we are required to address

We were appointed by AIFM on 29 January 2018 to audit the financial statements for the financial
year end 31 December 2017 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is three years, covering the
years ending 31 December 2017 to 31 December 2019.

The non-audit services prohibited by 1AASA™s Ethical Standard were not provided and we remained
independent of the Fund in conducting the audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the AIFM we are required to provide in

accordance with ISA (Ireland) 260.

Christian MacManus

For and on behal ¥ of Deloitte Ireland LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Deloitte & Touche House, Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2

Date: 29 April 2020
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS
(IRELAND) LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Carne Global Fund Managers (lreland) Limited (the*
Company™) for the year ended 31 March 2019, which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is Irish law and Financial Reporting
Standard 102 * The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company as at 31
March 2019 and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland®; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (I1SAs
(Ireland)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors”® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish
Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (1AASA), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the fol lowing matters in relation to which ISA (Ireland) 570
requires us to report to you where:

the directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Company®s ability to continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS
(IRELAND) LIMITED

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors”®
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
wi'th the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. Ifwe identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. 1f, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014

Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:
inour opinion, the information given in the Directors® Report is consistent with the financial
statements; and
inour opinion, the Directors® Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial
statements to be readily and properly audited, and the financial statements are in agreement with
the accounting records.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors® Report.

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, inour opinion, the disclosures of

directors” remuneration and transactions required by sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS
(IRELAND) LIMITED

Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors” Responsibilities Statement on page 2, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
Auditors® Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (lreland)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the IAASA'"s website at: https://www.iaasa.ie/Publications/I1SA-700-(lreland). This
description forms part of our Auditors®™ Report.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company®s members, as a body, in accordance with Section
391 of the Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Company®s members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors® Report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company®s members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS (IRELAND) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CARNE GLOBAL FUND MANAGERS
(IRELAND) LIMITED

Roseann Heavey

for and on behal f of

Noone Casey

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
25 Herbert Place

Dublin 2

D02AY86

Date: 25/6/2019
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